
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   12 August 2013 
 

 
Committee:  
Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 19 August 2013 
Time: 12.30 pm 
Venue: Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, 
Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Members of Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee 
Gerald Dakin (Chairman) 
David Minnery (Vice Chairman) 
John Cadwallader 
Tracey Huffer 
Simon Jones 

Jane Mackenzie 
Peggy Mullock 
Peter Nutting 
Vivienne Parry 
Madge Shineton 

 
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Fiona Howe  
Tel:   01743 252876 
Email:   Fiona.howe@shropshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutes  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions, statements or petitions from the public of which 
members of the public have given notice.   
 
Deadline for notification is:  Wednesday, 14 August 2013  
Contact: Fiona Howe (01743) 252876 
 
 

4  Members Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice. 
  
Contact: Fiona Howe (01743) 252876 
 
 

5  Call-In Day Service Reconfiguration (Pages 1 - 76) 
 
A copy of the Call-In Notice received from the leader of the Council’s Labour 
Group together with the report considered by Shropshire’s Portfolio Holder 
Decision Making Session on 1 August 2013, are attached, marked 5. 
 
This decision has been called in by the Labour Group and Liberal Democrat 
Group, as detailed in the Call-In Notice.  The Scrutiny Committee is asked to 
consider the report and the decision taken by the Portfolio Holder. 
 
If having considered the decision, the Scrutiny Committee is still concerned 
about the decision, then it may refer the matter back to Cabinet, setting out in 
writing the nature of its concerns.  If the Scrutiny Committee does not refer the 
matter back to Cabinet, the decision shall take effect on the date of the Scrutiny 
meeting.   
 
The delegated Portfolio Holder decision was as follows: 
 
The transformation of day services proceeds in line with the adult social care 
strategy and the outcomes of the consultation on the transformation to 



modernise day services. 
 
A. The transformation of day services proceeds in line with the adult social 

care strategy and the outcomes of the consultation on the transformation 
to modernise day services. 

 
B. That the use of day centre buildings, as a primary means of delivering 

day time support is reduced by both utilising existing accommodation to 
maximum effect, supporting individuals to take up alternatives to building 
based services in line with transformation activities already underway and 
that where accommodation is not being utilised effectively that 
accommodation is rationalised accordingly. The details of the 
transformation plan are attached in Appendix D (as amended). 

 
C. That the Adult Social Care service confirms the model and resources 

required to meet the specialist day service provision required by those 
with some of those with most complex physical health and disability 
needs.  
 

D. That commissioning of support for day time activities is undertaken at 
strategic level for those areas where specialist day service provision is 
needed, that locality commissioning opportunities are developed for the 
personal assistance-based resource needed to support some 
personalised alternatives and that brokerage resources are 
commissioned supporting individuals with personal budgets. 

 
 

6  Date and Time of the Next Meeting of the Committee  
 
The Committee is scheduled to next meeting at 10.00 a.m. on Monday, 7 
October 2013 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



5
CALL IN NOTICE FROM COUNCILLOR A MOSLEY LEADER OF THE LABOUR
GROUP

I wish to call in the decision made by Councillor Tim Barker, Portfolio Holder for Adult
Services, made on 1 August 2013.

Reason for call in:

There has been insufficient attention given to the potential for all-party talks
regarding the decision making process and the particular outcomes for such a vital
service area.

Alternatives for consideration:

The alternative course of action proposed is that the decision be set aside until the
formation, deliberation and report of a Commission. The Commission to comprise
representatives of all parties, expert advisor, relevant interest groups, including
representatives of users of service and carers. The precise composition and terms
of reference to be determined by the Scrutiny Committee.

Councillor Alan Mosley
Labour Group Leader, Shropshire Council

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Portfolio Holder Decision Making Session - 1
st
August 2013/Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee –

19
th
August 2013: Day Services Reconfiguration

1

Committee and Date
Portfolio Holders Decision
Making Meeting – Adult
Services
1st August 2013

Health & Adult Social Care
Scrutiny Committee

10.00 a.m.

Item

5
Public

DAY SERVICE RECONFIGURATION

Responsible Officer Stephen T Chandler
e-mail: Stephen.chandler@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 253704

1. Summary

1.1 The demand for social care support increases each year with people living
longer and more people living with longer term conditions; there are an
increasing number of young adults in transition to adult services and adults
with complex needs. There is an increased public expectation and, rightly an
expectation of more personal and flexible support for those eligible for social
care. This increased demand for service is at a time when the council is
facing unprecedented financial pressures with an overall reduction in the
financial settlement.

1.2 In order to respond to these challenges whilst continuing to deliver high
quality support and service offers, we need to radically transform our
services - whilst giving a clear signal of a different offer of support to
individuals in the future. An offer that focuses on maximising the individual’s
potential utilising their individual capabilities, their family and community
resources and with less expenditure on formal place based and funded
council support.

1.3 Social care is often a vital part of enabling people to live healthy and
independent lives but it is far from being the only component of enabling
people to live fulfilled lives. We must build and harness the contributions
communities can make to support themselves and the people living in them.
There are already notable successes, where as a consequence of
transformation and a different approach to supporting individuals this has
been possible.

1.4 During 2012 Shropshire Council confirmed its ambition to become a
commissioning council. As part of realising this objective the council has
developed a range of commissioning models at strategic commissioning
level, locality commissioning level and through personal commissioning

Page 3



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

2

using personal budgets. Each of these commissioning options provides an
opportunity to support the transformation of adult social care services.

1.5 The transformation of Adult Social Care has been underway in Shropshire for
a number of years, focusing on the delivery of personalised services within
the existing day service provision. A number of positive changes have
occurred in recent years as part of this process including increased choices
and variety of support, maximising individuals potential and use of local
resources. This has also included the rationalising of some building based
provision.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The portfolio holder for adult social care approves the following:

2.1.1 The transformation of day services proceeds in line with the adult social
care strategy and the outcomes of the consultation on the
transformation to modernise day services.

2.1.2 That the use of day centre buildings, as a primary means of delivering
day time support is reduced by both utilising existing accommodation to
maximum effect, supporting individuals to take up alternatives to
building based services in line with transformation activities already
underway and that where accommodation is not being utilised
effectively that accommodation is rationalised accordingly. The details
of the transformation plan are attached in Appendix D.

2.1.3 That the Adult Social Care service confirms the model and resources
required to meet the specialist day service provision required by those
with some of those with most complex physical health and disability
needs.

2.1.4 That commissioning of support for day time activities is undertaken at
strategic level for those areas where specialist day service provision is
needed, that locality commissioning opportunities are developed for the
personal assistance-based resource needed to support some
personalised alternatives and that brokerage resources are
commissioned supporting individuals with personal budgets.

REPORT:
3. Introduction

3.1 Over the last 3 years adult social care services in Shropshire have
undertaken a series of significant consultation activities to gather the
views of users of services, their carers’ and other stakeholders about what
is important in the delivery of social care, what works well in relation to
current services provided and what needs to be included in future service
developments. The details of both the consultation process and outcomes
are included in Appendix A.

Page 4



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

3

3.2 This gathering of opinions, views and thoughts began with development of
the adult social care strategy ‘Live Life Your Way’ published and approved
by cabinet in October 2011, was followed by a further and very detailed
consultation regarding the future of day time activities specifically the use of
a personalised approach to support service change during the summer of
2012 with a formal report to Cabinet in September 2012. (Appendix B).

3.3 The overwhelming feedback from both exercises was that people want
much more choice and control over the way services are organised and
delivered. People want services to be modern and aligned to the activities
and support that individuals could expect to receive if they were non-
disabled or in receipt of any form of support. People also wanted to be able
to experience these opportunities irrespective of their level of disability or
age.

3.4 People also expressed concerns about service models that risked
segregation from main stream society and reduced the opportunity to
integrate with other non-disabled members of their community. Since 2011
there have been a number of individual changes that have occurred,
specifically within the services that support people during the day; the
review of support provided to individuals who had been attending The
Grange Day Centre in Shrewsbury; the development of individualised
packages of support for people who historically used traditional day centres
and people who approached the service for the first time. In addition, a
move away from using buildings in both Coton Hill and Ellesmere has
supported a positive change for individuals.

3.5 Proposed Changes

3.5.1 The service has now reached a point where it is important to progress
at pace the transformation of the way people in Shropshire receive
that support. This transformation builds clearly on the experiences
and activities to date and seeks to put the individual service user at
the heart of service delivery. It does however recognise, and our
experience has shown us, that people are naturally hesitant about
changes and may not take up the opportunity of doing something
different even if they believe that a new support arrangement will be
much more positive, due to the anxiety and influences that they
receive. For this, we believe that it is necessary to set a clear
change agenda programme and to ensure we provide the right levels
of support for individuals during that transformation process. The
transformation of day services will concentrate on individual and total
service review with a view to completion by no later than December
2014.

3.6 The outline plan for each existing service are set out in Appendix D.

3.7 There will be a number of overarching principles that will underpin the
transformation as follows:

Page 5



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

4

In line with the council’s strategic aim to be a commissioning council
adult social care will from January 2015 cease to be a provider of
any form of day time opportunities but will purely commission these
where appropriate on behalf of individuals.

The transformation agenda will seek to maximise the opportunities that
local commissioning or individual commissioning using personal budgets
offers.

Individual and appropriate levels of support will be provided to maximise
the opportunities in both these areas.

The changes in service will be implemented using a well-established and
comprehensive process including an individual review and planning
meetings; the involvement of family carers and advocates; an individual
timetable for each service and service users based upon the outcome of
the reviews.

4. The Challenges and Opportunities

4.1 The challenge in transforming day service provision is to adequately explain
and indeed convince existing users of services and their families that the
alternative to a day centre or to a programme of activities that focuses solely
on a day centre are credible and possible. The service now has a number of
clear examples where it has already successfully supported individuals in
changing the way daytime support is organised and delivered which offers
greater personalisation whilst maintaining some of the key features of their
original programme that were important. This convincingly shows both the
success of sensitive engagement and planning with vulnerable people, many
of whom have complex communication needs as well as identifying suitable
and more positive outcomes.

4.2 Carers

4.2.1 Carers provide a valuable resource both supporting the individual whilst
they are home, reassuring the individual in respect of their planned
activities and through day services receiving an element of respite from
their caring role. The council recognises the importance of ensuring that
this support continues and as with individuals now has a proven track
record of ensuring that the support day service has provided to carers
is replaced by adequate and equivalent support.

4.2.2 Practical examples of the positive changes that individuals have
received are set out in Appendix C.

4.3 Staffing.

4.3.1 The transformation of day services will have a number of impacts on
staffing. The role that staff play now and the role that staff play in the
future will be very different. There be will be opportunities for people to
undertake new roles such as brokerage and personal assistance but
will require individuals to be much more flexible and confident than they
have been required to in the past.

Page 6



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

5

4.3.2 There will also be less staff required overall to provide support, this will
be due to less bureaucracy surrounding the overall organisation and
management of day services, less staff required to supply direct
support as individuals will share support. Individuals will as well access
social capital and will access activities which in themselves include
support. Initial assessments and experience have shown that a 30 to
40% reduction in the staffing is possible within the new model. This
reduction is in line with the Council’s experience of transforming other
services and the Council’s overall staffing plan. The service will seek to
minimise the negative impact of such changes on the workforce
through appropriate skilling of staff to take on new roles and duties,
redeployment to other council services and through other means such
as redundancy management.

4.4 Commercial Focus – Daytime Activities

4.4.1 There are a number of commercially focused daytime services at present
these include Corner Patch, Maesbury Metals, Oak farm and Greenacres
farm. The concept of having a range of commercially orientated
activities coupled with appropriate levels of support is one that people felt
was important to continue in the future but the sustainability of such
services is only possible if they are able to attract individuals who want to
attend such resources and they are able to secure income.

4.4.2 The Council will through this transformation work robustly to secure the
long term future of each of these services building on the work that has
already been undertaken.

4.5 Buildings

4.5.1 Our analysis carried out within the current day centre provision evidence
confirms the on-going need for some specific buildings. This we believe
is for individuals that predominately have the most complex learning and
physical disabilities. Current and future levels of demand have identified
the requirement for 2 physical bases to support these groups. We
believe that on current and future demands one is best located in
Shrewsbury and one in Oswestry.

4.5.2 In relation to other building requirements the overarching principle is that
where an individual requires a building as either a base or a meeting
point; their local community based facilities are used for this purpose with
a definite move away from the reliance on local authority provided
buildings that are provided solely for day service provision. The model of
having council owned and run buildings that are used solely for the
purpose of day time activities has an inherent segregation from local
communities and whilst significant efforts have been made to integrate
local communities into our existing buildings this has not proved to be
successful. There are now a number of successful examples of where
community’ resources are used effectively, thus providing a positive
opportunity for people to integrate within the local communities as well as
providing valuable financial support to small communities.

Page 7



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

6

4.5.3 As set out in 3.3.1 where staff are required either, as a result of local
commissioning, or personal commissioning or indeed whether there are
significant services for people with complex needs, the council will seek
to identify a range of provider options for this. However, the council will
cease as the employer and deliverer of these services.

4.5.4 There are a number of specific buildings (PFI) that the council will
continue to have an on-going responsibility for. The use of these buildings
will be explained as part of the individual planning for the people in that
area. The council will wish to ensure these building are used to maximum
effect, ideally much more local community based resources where some
day time activities may continue but they do not exist solely at a day
centre.

5. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

5.1 Risk Management Appraisal

5.1.1 The proposed transformation of day services using personalisation will
ensure an equitable approach to offering services and support. By
ensuring transformation plans are developed on the basis of individual
reviews including all stakeholders then the person will remain the
centre of the change.

5.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal

5.2.1 The proposal to transfer day services using personalisation across all
services offers is compatible with Human Rights Act.

5.3 Equalities Appraisal

5.3.1The transformation of day services through a personalised approach will
ensure that individual needs are met in a tailored and individual way.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 The full financial implications of the overall transformation can only be
confirmed when the final implementation of charges occurs.

6.2 Savings however, have been identified across the 3 key areas of expenditure
namley building usage, transport and staffing

6.3 A provisional saving of £1.6 million has been developed based on the
specific proposal where the greater detail is available for. The detail is
included in Appendix E

7. Conclusion

Page 8



1
st
August 2013- Day Services Reconfiguration

7

7.1 The transformation of day services is a critical part of the overall adult social
care agenda. This transformation of services has already been underway for
many years with many people having benefited from a modern service.

7.2 The approach to transforming day services has been used successfully within
Shropshire, managing the inherent stress associated with such a change
process involving vulnerable people, their carer’s and staff.

7.3 This transformation not only will provide a better individualised package for
people but also will deliver savings for the council.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder). Tim Barker

Local Member. All, county wide changes

Appendices

Appendix A – ‘Live Life Your Way’ Adult Social Care Strategy Report on

Consultation Outcomes

Appendix B – Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire – Next

Steps

Appendix C – Case examples of positive changes already achieved

Appendix D – Day Service Transformation Plan

Appendix E – Value for Money Plan

Appendix F - EINA

Page 9



Portfolio Holder Decision Making Session - 1
st
August 2013/Health & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee – 19

th

August 2013: Day Services Reconfiguration

8

Declaration of Interest

• I have no interest to declare in respect of this report

Signed ………………………………… Date ………………………………………
NAME: …………………………………………………………………………………
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR: ……………………………………………………….

• I have to declare an interest in respect of this report

Signed ………………………………… Date ………………………………………
NAME: …………………………………………………………………………………
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR: ……………………………………………………….

(Note: If you have an interest you should seek advice as to whether it is appropriate
to make a decision in relation to this matter.)

For the reasons set out in the report, I agree the recommendation(s) in the report
entitled ……………………………………………….

Signed …………………………………………………………………………………………
Portfolio Holder for …………………………………………………………………………...
Date ………………………………………….

If you have any additional comment which you would want actioned in connection
with your decision you should discuss this with the report author and then set out
your comment below before the report and pro-forma is returned to Democratic
Services for processing.

Additional comment : ………………………………………………………………………...
…………………………………………………………………………………………………..
………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Note: If you do not wish to approve the recommendations, or wish to make an
alternative decision, it is important that you consult the report author, Head of Legal
and Democratic Services, Chief Executive and the Head of Finance, Governance
and Assurance (S151 Officer) and, if there are staffing implications the Head of
Human Resources (or their representatives) so that (1) you can be made aware of
any further relevant considerations that you should take into account before making
the decision and (2) your reasons for the decision can be properly identified and
recorded, as required by law.

Note to Portfolio Holder: Your decision will now be published and communicated to
all Members of Council. If the decision falls within the criteria for call-in, it will not be
implemented until five working days have elapsed from publication.

Page 10



   -     - Page 1 of 9

  

A STRATEGY FOR THE FUTURE
OF

ADULT SOCIAL CARE IN
SHROPSHIRE

Appendix A

Page 11



   -     - Page 2 of 9

CONTENTS

1.0 Background

1.1 Background to the strategy

1.2 Local Context

1.3 National Context

2.0 Vision

2.1 Vision

2.2 Aims

3.0 Implementation

3.1 Priority areas

3.2 Timetable for implementation

4.0 Monitoring, evaluation and review

5.0 Appendices

Appendix B i Consultation Methods

Appendix C i Consultation Events Schedule

Appendix D - Diversity Monitoring

Appendix E - Examples of Materials used

Appendix F i Consultation Key Messages

Appendix G i Draft Implementation Plan

Page 12



   -     - Page 3 of 9

1.0 Background to the Strategy

Shropshire Council undertook its most comprehensive consultation on the
transformation of Adult Social Care over a period of 3 months from the 4th July 2011
to the 30th September 2011. During this time over 600 people took part in events and
discussions as follows:

      
   
         entres and with stakeholder groups
         
    was held attended by 28 councillors
 A feedback event attended by approximately 90 delegates was held

Full details of the consultation methodology can be found at Appendices B-E.

Consultation Outcomes:

This period of consultation has been the most extensive about adult social care in
Shropshire for a number of years. This reflects both the level of and the importance
of the wide ranging changes that are required to ensure service provision for the most
vulnerable in our local communities.

The extensive public consultation resulted in a wealth of information and data which
has been used to produce this strategy for Adult Social Care. A number of significant
key messages have emerged of the things that are the most important to the people
who use or come into contact with our services. There has been some positive and
negative feedback and also some useful and practical ideas for future service
provision. Detailed below are the key areas that have been highlighted as important
to people:

' Support for the Individual being Tailored to their Needs and Preferences and
Localised within their Communities

' Good Information & Communication Systems and Processes

' Simple Processes that are Easy for the User to Follow

' Effective Partnership across all Partners

' High Quality Staff/Service

' Support for Carers (Broad Ranging)

' Better use of Transport Resources

' Developing the Role of the Council as a Facilitator

' Improving Community Involvement and increased use of the Voluntary Sector

' More use of Technology

' Improve Access to College and Employment

' Improve Peoples Opportunities to Socialise and to be an Effective Member of
their Communities

' Modernise Day Centres

' Housing

Page 13



   -     - Page 4 of 9

Full details of key messages can be found at Appendix F.

1.1 Local Context

In the vision for adult social care presented to cabinet in June 2011 we said that
future service models would be based on the principles of working together,
prevention, enabling, maximising independence, and providing targeted incremental
support where it is needed. The key messages from the consultation highlight that
these areas are also felt to be the important principles by those who use or are
affected by our services.

We said that users of services no longer want a narrow range of standardised support
options, as has been traditionally the case but, rather, now want personal support that
enables them to remain independent and active members of their communities for as
long as possible. The key messages from the consultation agree with this particularly
in terms of jSupporting the Individual.Y

We aimed to create a culture that encourages and supports collaboration, innovation
and collective learning. Improving outcomes through greater choice and control,
offered through a joined up approach across health and care services. The
consultation with public and service users has shown that jEffective PartnershipRY

are an inherently important factor in ensuring the successful delivery of Adult Social
Care services.

Throughout the consultation process people told us that they want to the jCouncil to
act as a FacilitatorY i to enable them to do things for themselves. We want to
improve the range of choices being offered to people focusing on empowering and
giving a clear voice to all residents (and their carers) who need care services.

We believe that by making care services more personalised, more preventative, more
efficient and more focused, better outcomes that meet the evolving needs of our local
communities are possible. We also believe that real efficiencies can be achieved, to
provide greater public value as well as more personalised care services.

In our vision for the future of Adult Social Care in Shropshire we set out a number of
key elements that will make service transformation a success. The feedback we have
received throughout the consultation has endorsed this vision based on the following
principles:

XParticipationY: encouraging, engaging and promoting local participation and
contribution.

XPrevention and enablementY: empowering local people and communities to work
together to maintain independence. Where it is needed, we will support communities
and help people to retain and regain independence through integrated and joined up
services and promotion of new support and assistive technologies, such as Telecare
and Telehealth.

Page 14



   -     - Page 5 of 9

XPersonalisationY: personalisation starts with the person not the service.
We will ensure that individuals, not institutions, take control of their care.
Personal budgets, preferably as direct payments, will be provided to all
eligible people. Information about care and support will be more relevant,
accessible and available for all local people, regardless of whether or not
they fund their own care.

XPartnershipY: care and support will be delivered in a partnership between
individuals, communities, the voluntary and private sectors, the NHS and
Shropshire Council - including wider support services, such as housing,
leisure, training, education and employment.

XPluralityY      s will be matched by diverse service
provision, with a broad market of high quality service providers.

We want to get to a position where service users can engage with the market and are
able to purchase services that help them achieve their planned care outcomes.

We want to promote competition within care markets in order to make sure providers
             

is maintained.

XProtectionY: there will be sensible safeguards against the risk of abuse or
            Published

information about agreed quality outcomes will support greater transparency and
accountability. Decision making by users will be informed by this information.

XProductivityY: Greater personal choice and transparent published information about
services will drive increases in productivity and value for money.

XPeopleY: the Council has significant resources to help providers create a highly
skilled and innovative workforce, who can provide care and support with compassion,
empathy, creativity and imagination. The Council recognises that the whole
workforce, including care workers, nurses, occupational therapists, physiotherapists
and social workers, alongside carers and the people who use services must have
access to learning and self development opportunities to lead the transformation of
care services across all care domains be they public, private or third sector based.

1.2 National Context

This strategy has been developed on the basis of the feedback from the consultation
process but has also considered the national policy drivers:

' A Vision for Adult Social Care: Capable Communities and Active Citizen,
Department of Health, 16th November 2010.

' Transparency in outcomes: A framework for quality to adult social care

' The Association of Directors of Adult Social Care (ADASS) i How to make
best use of reducing resources: A whole system approach

Page 15



   -     - Page 6 of 9

' Making a Strategic Shift to Prevention and Early Intervention 2008 (Putting
People First)

' Think Local, Act Personal, January 2011

2.0 Vision

Our vision for the future of Adult Social Care in Shropshire is to put people in the
driving seat deciding more and more how they want to Live Life their Way! Put simply
we want people who are able to, to commission their own care within the resources
available to them. The vision for the future is that the     
of a facilitator and enabler rather than a provider of services. We will provide support
to help people plan their care and take control over decisions. We will ensure we
safeguard those most vulnerable adults and maintain a high quality service.

2.1 Aims

We set out a number of strategic aims to achieve this vision, the Council will act as a
facilitator to:

Aim 1: Ensure information about services is made easily available to those who need
it. Build a transparent information infrastructure that can support users and their
families, and include information about existing providers and new market entrants,
Shropshire Council, NHS partners and voluntary sector. To enable people to be better
able to exercise personal choice and make decisions that are best for them based on
relevant information.

Aim 2:Work effectively with our partners in health, business and the voluntary sector
across boundaries and departments.

Aim 3:Enable people to lead independent, fulfilling lives becoming a greater part of
their community through increased chances for socialising, gaining personal
recognition and making helpful relationships while remaining in their own homes for
as long as possible.

Aim 4:Encourage community and voluntary sector involvement in the provision of
services. Enable groups/people to help each other and collaborate on a wide variety
of issues, share knowledge and know how.

Aim 5: Ensure each person is treated as an individual whether as a person using our
services or as a carer, family member or friend and provide tailored support to those
who need it. Enable people to confidently select appropriate quality services or
equipment and feel secure about their personal safety and lifestyle.

Page 16



   -     - Page 7 of 9

3.0 Implementation

3.1 Priority areas for further work

These areas form the focus of the implementation plan (Appendix G)

' Encourage and develop further social enterprise:
- Through day services review i     

etc.
- Through voluntary groups and by linking with local businesses and

working in collaboration with the business and enterprise team.

' More accessible information communicated more effectively:
- Database of information i web based search engine/directoryisignpost

      
- Make information in person i use of drop in centres
- Use local/digit TV
- Maximise knowledge of First Point of Contact Staff (FPoC)

' Community and voluntary sector involvement:
- Capacity building in the community i opportunities for: start ups,

existing for profit and not for profit organisations
- Use community to disseminate information
- Facilitate volunteer recruitment scheme such as retirement courses
- Help voluntary groups promote themselves i provide a mechanism for

web promotion
- Encourage use of and promote the Voluntary and Community Sector
Assembly (VCS)i audit of Sh   
facilitate/encourage networking and collaboration

' More effective partnership working:
- Link up with other council departments, ICT, Housing, Transport,

Business & Enterprise through organised data sharing
- Maximise links with health through Health & Well Being Board
- Encourage greater links with business sector

' Encourage use of modern technology:
i Help maintain independence through a greater use of Assistive

Technology and Telecare support and electronic home care monitoring.
i Work with other organisations and ICT team to encourage greater

broadband provision and training for vulnerable people to encourage
independence and avoid isolation.

' Enable socialisation through a variety of methods:
i Enable and promote the use of personal budgets/personalisation
i Review of day time opportunities including the role and future

requirements of Day Centres
i Introduction of charges across adult social care

Page 17



   -     - Page 8 of 9

' Better use of transport:
- Review day services transport provision and capacity in down time
- Work with transport team and voluntary organisations to provide

innovative transport methods
- Promote community transport through information database and other

communications strategies

' Create more capacity in Short Term Assessment & Reablement for Young
Adults and Older People to enable greater use of targeted support to enable
people to remain independent

' Review in-house provision of residential and nursing homes:
- To keep up with reduced demand through increased independence from
other initiatives

3.2 Timetable for implementation

Develop framework and
Implementation plan

October - November 2011

Agree framework and Implementation
plan

Cabinet 16th November 2011

Develop project plan November - December 2011

Implement programme of
transformation

January 2012 onwards

4.0 Monitoring, evaluation and review

An implementation plan to ensure the aims of this strategy are met is set out in
Appendix G. Progress will be reviewed at regular intervals and reported as
appropriate.

Page 18



   -     - Page 9 of 9

Appendices

Page 19



    

!"#$%&%'()



!             
        

          
    

!    
!   
! 
!    
! 



!           
   '8  

!         
         '8    

    

!            
       '8       
  

!           
        

!             
      

!           
    

!            
         

          

!                
          

!            
         

     

!             
          
           
     

!          
 



!               
         
             

Page 20



           
           

 

 

!            
         
         
          

 



!             
        

          
         

            


!            
        

!              
          

!             
 

!               
   

!            
     70 

!             
           



!              
       

         
   

K+,:6.,+,)

!          
 

!          

G3+.',)

     

!       '8     
            
        

Page 21



         
         

!       .0      
         

       
         

      

        

!                
      '8   

            
         
         
           

   

!             
             
          

  

 

!         '8     
           
    

 

!              '8  '8

         
  

!             
        
   

!               
             

         
    

!            
   

!             
     

!             
  

 

!         '8    
          

         

Page 22



 

!          70      
          
          

         
          
           
          

           
          

    

!             
            
          

!               
            

   

Page 23



Appendix C: Consultation Events Schedule

Table 1: Public events schedule

Public Events

Area Date Venue Numbers Attended

Central 29.7.11 Shrewsbury Town Football
Club

Approx 80

North West 4.8.11 Marches School Oswestry 25

South East 18.8.11 Bridgnorth Leisure Centre 20

North East 22.8.11 Whitchurch Leisure Centre 20

Central
Evening

23.8.11 Community Hall, The Lantern 6

South West 24.8.11 Ludlow Food Centre 30

Discussion Groups

Area Date Venue Numbers Attended

North 16.8.11 Bradbury Day Centre,
Whitchurch

Approx 15 + Service
Users and staff

13.9.11 Ellesmere Opps & The
Meres

Approx 30 + Service
Users and staff

19.8.11 Oswestry, Lorne St Approx 15 Service
Users

26.8.11 Oswestry Maesbury Metals
and Cornerpatch

Approx 15 Service
Users

Central 8.8.11 Hartleys, Shrewsbury Approx 15 Service
Users and staff

9.8.11 Hartleys, Shrewsbury Approx 15
parents/carers

14.9.11 Albert Road & Aquamira,
Shrewsbury

Approx 20 Service
Users + staff

15.9.11 Abbots Wood & Sabrina
Court, Shrewsbury

Approx 20 Service
Users + staff

South 8.9.11 Oak Farm, Approx 20 + service
users and staff

8.9.11 Helena Lane Approx 10 service
users and staff

9.9.11 Innage Lane Approx 15 service
users and staff

16.9.11 Helena Lane Approx 15 Service
Users + staff

Stakeholder Events

Group Date Venue Number Attended

VCS Assembly 8.7.11 Shirehall Council
Chamber

Approx 40 stakeholders
from voluntary
organisations

Page 24



Partnership
Boards

22.7.11 Community Hall, The
Lantern

Approx 40 stakeholders
from partnership boards

Peoples Panel 13.9.11 Guildhall Council
Chamber

20 members of the
general public

Carers
Leadership
Group

6.9.11 Abbots Wood 8 members of the carers
leadership group

Parent Carers
Council

16.9.11 Gateway, Shrewsbury 8 members of the group

Staff Events

Area Date Venue Number Attended

North 5.9.11 Castle View Council
Chamber, Oswestry

13 members of staff

Central 5.9.11 The Guildhall Council
Chamber, Shrewsbury

17 members of staff

South 5.9.11 Shropshire Hills
Discovery Centre

14 members of staff

Member Briefings

Invitees Date Venue

All Members 5.9.11 Council Chamber,
Shirehall

28 councillors

Page 25



  

      




(&*#+,&-.

 
  




      
     

           
       
        

          

        
       
      
      
         
      

         
      
      
      

        

      
 

       
        

       

    

!"#

!$#

"#

"#

!%#

&%#

'()*+,-.

/+*-0+.+1)

23-45+56

/+*-0+.+1)

   

2+<+1+56

=. .53**

>853

Page 26



        

        



52

62

752

762

852

862

952

962



A1>%$/@

A;%)*-



      

(9

&(9

@(9

<(9

B(9

C(9

-(9

?(9

'(9



.47,#

    

)/$3,

6,47,#



Page 27



         

        

      

        

Page 28



   


















Page 29



Page 30



      

Page 31



    

  

  

"          

"     F     F   
         F   F 


"          F  

"        F     

"         

"        

"      

"    

"    

 "

"           

"       F  F   
 F            
      

"              
           

                
       

"            F   

"       F       
         

"         

"    

"        

"         

"            
 

"       

"         

 

   

"      F      
  

"     F           
       

"     F     F      

"     F       F   
 

Page 32



"     F      F    
[L]_YP]^ST[

"         
    

"       F    

"    

"          F    F  
  

  

"             
           

   F   

"              
       

  

   

"        F     F  
   

"      

"   F      F       
 

"     

  

   

"         

"       

"    

"  

"      

"      F    F    
 F      

"       F    

 "

"       

"      F   F   
    F    

"       F      

"        

"     

"                

"            

"      

Page 33



"    

"       F     

"            

"     

  

  

"     F     

"     

"    

"          

"        

"               
 F  

"    

"   F          
           

 

"    F        F 


"       F      


"       

"      F   

  

  

"       

"      

"   F      F       

"            
        

"              
     

"             
            

     

  

"    

 

  

"    

Page 34



"    F   

"    

"       

"            

"    

"          F   


"           

"      

"     

"     F    

"             
   

"     

"     

"       

"     F      

"     F        
        F    

 

"      

"        

"              

"    

"             

  

"             
            
         

"    

"     

"   

"    F    

"      

   

  

"     F    

"     F  

"        

"        

"            


"   F   F 



Page 35



"     F        
          
    

"    

"         F     

"       

    

  

"              
       

"      

"        

"    F     

"             

 "

"       F        
 

"       F         
           
             
  

"         

"        F     



  

"          

"             

"      F      
             F
   

"        F     

"          

"          

"        

 "

"        

"   



  

Page 36



"        

"               

"      

"     

"              
   

"       F      


"     F   

"         F    

"       

"             
     

"     
!      
!   
!   



"       F         
           F

    F        
     

"     F   

"         F     
 

  
  "

"             

 "

"         

"              
              

               
           
              
    

"    F         
          

             
          

       F    F  
             
   

"            
            


Page 37



"              
   

"               
    

"           



  

"             
  

"    F   

"            


           
 



"          F    F
         F      

"   F            
  F       

"   F       F      
            

 F      F       
 

"          F       
  

"              
  

"                
           

"   

"   

"          

"       F   

"    

"    F  

"   

"   

"    

"           



"        

"  

Page 38



"                 

"            
F   

"      F   F  F    F   
              F 


"        F       

"         

"             

"          

"          

"             

"            
 

"       

"        

"      

"         

"          

"        

"         

"       

"               

"          

"     F     

"    

"   

Page 39










"
















).

*
)

*
.

+
)

+
.

,
)

,
.



Page 40



  








"












).

*
)

*
.

+
)

+
.

,
)

,
.



6
Z
X
X
`
Y
TN
L
_T
Z
Y

8
QQ
P
N
_T
aP

C
L
]_
Y
P
]^
S
T[



9
L
N
TW
T_
L
_Z
]

6
Z
X
X
`
Y
T_
d

<Y
aZ
Wa
P
X
P
Y
_



<Y
O
Ta
TO
`
L
W



6
L
]P
]^

C
]Z
N
P
^
^

F
_L
QQ
(F
P
]a
TN
P

G
P
N
S
Y
Z
WZ
R
d

G
]L
Y
^
[
Z
]_

         

Page 41



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
G

–
D

ra
ft

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

P
la

n

A
d

u
lt

S
o

c
ia

l
C

a
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

–
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
P

la
n

A
im

1
:
E
n
s
u
re
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
b
o
u
t
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
is
m
a
d
e
e
a
s
ily
a
v
a
ila
b
le
to
th
o
s
e
w
h
o
n
e
e
d
it
.
B
u
ild
in
g
a
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
th
a
t
c
a
n

s
u
p
p
o
rt
u
s
e
rs
a
n
d
th
e
ir
fa
m
ili
e
s
,
a
n
d
in
c
lu
d
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
b
o
u
t
e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
a
n
d
n
e
w
m
a
rk
e
t
e
n
tr
a
n
ts
,
S
h
ro
p
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il,
N
H
S
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
a
n
d

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r.
T
o
e
n
a
b
le
p
e
o
p
le
to
b
e
b
e
tt
e
r
a
b
le
to
e
x
e
rc
is
e
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l
c
h
o
ic
e
a
n
d
m
a
k
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
th
a
t
a
re
b
e
s
t
fo
r
th
e
m
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
re
le
v
a
n
t

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
M
o
re
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
m
o
re
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

1
.1

T
h
e
c
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
c
re
a
te
a
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
o
f

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
o
n
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
re
la
te
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
a
n
d
m
a
k
e
it
a
v
a
ila
b
le
th
ro
u
g
h

th
e
S
h
ro
p
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
e
b
s
it
e

IC
T
&
A
&
E

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
o
f

w
e
b
b
a
s
e
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

w
e
b
b
a
s
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
to
o
l.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

1
.2

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
a
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
to
s
ig
n
p
o
s
t
to
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
a
n
d
to
th
e
F
ir
s
t
P
o
in
t
o
f

C
o
n
ta
c
t
n
u
m
b
e
r
th
ro
u
g
h
lo
c
a
l
P
a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
ils
,
G
P
’s
a
n
d
lo
c
a
l
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
.

C
o
m
m
s
&

A
&
E

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
o
f

w
e
b
b
a
s
e
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

w
e
b
tr
a
ff
ic
a
n
a
ly
s
is
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

1
.3

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
e
n
s
u
re
th
is
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

is
a
v
a
ila
b
le
to
p
e
o
p
le
in
p
e
rs
o
n
th
ro
u
g
h

th
e
u
s
e
o
f
lo
c
a
l
lib
ra
ri
e
s
,
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

c
e
n
tr
e
s
a
n
d
B
ro
a
d
p
la
c
e
s
.

A
re
a

d
ir
e
c
to
rs

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
to

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

ro
ll
o
u
t
o
f
fr
o
n
t
lin
e
s
ta
ff

tr
a
in
in
g
in
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g

n
e
w
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
.

A
p
ri
l
2
0
1
2

1
.4

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
e
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
to
c
re
a
te
a
d
ig
it
a
l
te
le
v
is
io
n

c
h
a
n
n
e
l
to
a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re

a
n
d
o
th
e
r
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
th
e
p
u
b
lic
,

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
th
o
s
e
w
it
h
o
u
t
in
te
rn
e
t.

C
u
s
t

In
s
ig
h
t

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
to

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

re
g
u
la
r
u
p
d
a
te
s
to
IC
T

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs

B
o
a
rd
/G
ro
u
p
.

M
a
y
2
0
1
2

1
.5

W
e
w
ill
m
a
x
im
is
e
th
e
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
o
f
o
u
r

F
ir
s
t
P
o
in
t
o
f
C
o
n
ta
c
t
S
ta
ff
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t

e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
c
o
m
in
g
in
to
th
e
c
o
u
n
c
il

th
ro
u
g
h
th
is
ro
u
te
is
p
ro
v
id
e
d
w
it
h

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

C
u
s
t

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
&

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

L
e
a
d

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
to

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
c
a
lls

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
a
t
F
P
O
C
.

J
a
n
2
0
1
2

Page 42



C
a
b
in
e
t,
1
9
th
O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
1
:
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
–
D
ra
ft
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
P
la
n

2

A
im

2
:

W
o
rk
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
w
it
h
o
u
r
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
in
h
e
a
lt
h
,
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
a
n
d
th
e
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r
a
c
ro
s
s
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
a
n
d
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
.

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
o
c
ia
l
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

1
.6

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
p
ro
m
o
te
th
e
u
s
e
o
f

o
th
e
r
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
s
u
c
h
a
s
S
M
S
to

p
ro
v
id
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

C
u
s
t

In
s
ig
h
t

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
c
u
s
to
m
e
r
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
o
f

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
n
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
c
o
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
th
e
ir
o
w
n
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

S
M
S
d
a
ta
.

E
n
d
2
0
1
2

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

2
.1

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
a
c
o
m
p
le
te

re
v
ie
w
o
f
in
h
o
u
s
e
d
a
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n

a
im
in
g
to
lo
o
k
a
t
a
m
o
re
fl
e
x
ib
le
w
a
y
o
f

w
o
rk
in
g
a
n
d
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
s
o
c
ia
l
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

a
n
d
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
e
.g
.
m
u
lt
i

u
s
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
c
e
n
tr
e
’s
,
d
ro
p
in

c
e
n
tr
e
’s
.

P
ro
v
id
e
r

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
c
h
o
ic
e
s
fo
r
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
b
e
tt
e
r
q
u
a
lit
y
o
f
lif
e

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
s
o
c
ia
l

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

In
c
re
a
s
e
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
o
m
e
re
v
e
n
u
e
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
d
e
m
a
n
d
fo
r

c
o
u
n
c
il
ru
n
b
u
ild
in
g

b
a
s
e
d
d
a
y
c
e
n
tr
e
s
a
n
d

ta
k
e
u
p
o
f
s
e
lf
d
ir
e
c
te
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
th
ro
u
g
h

in
d
ic
a
to
r
N
I1
3
0
.
A
ls
o

th
ro
u
g
h
N
I1
4
6
a
d
u
lt
s

w
it
h
le
a
rn
in
g
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
in

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.

M
id
2
0
1
2

2
.2

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
o
c
ia
l

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
th
ro
u
g
h
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
g
ro
u
p
s
a
n
d

lin
k
in
g
w
it
h
lo
c
a
l
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
a
n
d

w
o
rk
in
g
in
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
e

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
a
n
d
e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
te
a
m
.

V
C
S

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
c
h
o
ic
e
s
fo
r
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
b
e
tt
e
r
q
u
a
lit
y
o
f
lif
e

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
s
o
c
ia
l

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

In
c
re
a
s
e
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
o
m
e
re
v
e
n
u
e
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

th
e
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
a
n
d

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
s
e
c
to
r

a
s
s
e
m
b
ly
a
n
n
u
a
l
re
v
ie
w

a
n
d
th
ro
u
g
h
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
a
n
n
u
a
l

re
v
ie
w
s
.

M
id
2
0
1
2

Page 43



C
a
b
in
e
t,
1
9
th
O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
1
:
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
–
D
ra
ft
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
P
la
n

3

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
M
o
re
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
w
o
rk
in
g
:

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
B
e
tt
e
r
u
s
e
o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
:

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

2
.3

L
in
k
a
g
e
s
b
e
tw
e
e
n
c
o
u
n
c
il

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
,
(i
.e
.
IC
T
,
H
o
u
s
in
g
,

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
,
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
&
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
)
w
ill

b
e
p
ro
m
o
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
d
a
ta

s
h
a
ri
n
g

G
ro
u
p

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

M
o
re
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
w
o
rk
in
g
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
,

g
re
a
te
r
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
a
n
d
p
ro
v
is
io
n

o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

p
ro
g
re
s
s
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
t

g
ro
u
p
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

D
e
c
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

2
.4

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
m
a
x
im
is
e
lin
k
s
w
it
h

h
e
a
lt
h
c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
H
e
a
lt
h

&
W
e
ll
B
e
in
g
B
o
a
rd

D
ir
e
c
to
r
H
e
a
lt
h

&
W
e
llb
e
in
g

P
ro
m
o
te
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
a
n
d
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y

a
n
d
e
n
a
b
le
g
re
a
te
r
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

H
e
a
lt
h
&
W
e
ll
B
e
in
g

b
o
a
rd
re
p
o
rt
in
g

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
.

D
e
c
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

2
.5

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
w
o
rk
m
o
re
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

w
it
h
th
e
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
s
e
c
to
r
a
n
d

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
g
re
a
te
r
lin
k
s
b
e
tw
e
e
n

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
a
n
d
th
e
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g

&
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
&

e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
,

V
C
S

J
o
in
t
w
o
rk
in
g
b
e
tw
e
e
n
lo
c
a
l

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
a
n
d
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
g
ro
u
p
s
,

e
n
a
b
lin
g
m
o
re
p
e
o
p
le
to
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r,

m
o
re
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
u
s
e
o
f
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
a
n
d

g
re
a
te
r
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
s
o
c
ia
l
c
a
re

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
in
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
b
y

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
d
e
m
a
n
d
o
n

c
o
u
n
c
il
p
ro
v
id
e
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

M
a
y
2
0
1
2

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

2
.6

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
a
n
a
u
d
it
o
f

d
a
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
n
d

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
to
m
a
k
e
m
o
re
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
u
s
e
o
f

v
e
h
ic
le
d
o
w
n
ti
m
e

P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
/

D
a
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

m
a
n
a
g
e
r

M
o
re
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
u
s
e
o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
a
n
d
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
c
o
s
ts
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l
p
la
n
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

2
.7

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
w
ill
b
e

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
to
p
ro
v
id
e
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
m
e
th
o
d
s
th
ro
u
g
h
jo
in
t
w
o
rk
in
g

b
e
tw
e
e
n
th
e
c
o
u
n
c
ils
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
te
a
m
a
n
d

A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
.

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
/

V
C
S
/
A
&
E

G
re
a
te
r
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
to

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t
a
n
d
s
u
it
a
b
le
fo
rm
s

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
in
th
e
c
o
u
n
ty

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
in
ru
ra
l
a
re
a
s
.

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
’

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
b
y
p
ro
v
id
in
g

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
m
e
a
n
s
to
a
c
c
e
s
s

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
,
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
a
n
d
g
ro
u
p
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

c
u
s
to
m
e
r
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

Page 44



C
a
b
in
e
t,
1
9
th
O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
1
:
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
–
D
ra
ft
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
P
la
n

4

A
im

3
:

E
n
a
b
le
p
e
o
p
le
to
le
a
d
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t,
fu
lf
ill
in
g
liv
e
s
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
a
g
re
a
te
r
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
ir
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
c
h
a
n
c
e
s
fo
r
s
o
c
ia
lis
in
g
,
g
a
in
in
g

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l
re
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
a
n
d
m
a
k
in
g
h
e
lp
fu
l
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
a
n
d
re
m
a
in
in
th
e
ir
o
w
n
h
o
m
e
s
fo
r
a
s
lo
n
g
a
s
p
o
s
s
ib
le
.

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
u
s
e
o
f
m
o
d
e
rn
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
a
n
d
e
n
a
b
le
p
e
o
p
le
to
d
o
m
o
re
fo
r
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
a
n
d
re
m
a
in
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t.

2
.8

W
e
w
ill
p
ro
m
o
te
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

th
ro
u
g
h
n
e
w
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
a
n
d

o
th
e
r
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s

C
o
m
m
s

M
o
re
p
e
o
p
le
to
b
e
a
w
a
re
o
f
d
ia
l

a
ri
d
e
a
n
d
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
c
a
r

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
a
n
d
u
s
in
g
th
e
m
to

th
e
ir
fu
ll
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

c
a
ll
v
o
lu
m
e
to
c
u
s
to
m
e
r

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
fo
r
s
u
c
h
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

a
n
d
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r
jo
u
rn
e
y
s
.

J
a
n
2
0
1
2

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

3
.1

T
h
e
c
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
h
e
lp
p
e
o
p
le
m
a
in
ta
in

th
e
ir
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
th
ro
u
g
h
a
g
re
a
te
r

u
s
e
o
f
A
s
s
is
ti
v
e
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
a
n
d

T
e
le
c
a
re
s
u
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
h
o
m
e

c
a
re
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.
B
y
c
re
a
ti
n
g
a
n
d

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
a
n
A
s
s
is
ti
v
e
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y

S
tr
a
te
g
y
.

S
h
o
rt
T
e
rm

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

P
e
o
p
le
w
ill
re
m
a
in
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
in

th
e
ir
o
w
n
h
o
m
e
s
fo
r
lo
n
g
e
r
a
n
d
fe
e
l

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
a
n
d
h
a
v
e

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
q
u
a
lit
y
o
f
lif
e
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

le
v
e
ls
o
f
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

is
s
u
e
d
a
n
d

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
o
th
e
r
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
e
.g
.
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s

to
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
c
a
re
.

D
e
c
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

3
.2

W
e
w
ill
w
o
rk
w
it
h
o
th
e
r
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d
th
e
c
o
u
n
c
ils
IC
T
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
g
ro
u
p

to
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
g
re
a
te
r
b
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d

p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
n
d
tr
a
in
in
g
fo
r
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le

p
e
o
p
le
to
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
a
n
d

a
v
o
id
is
o
la
ti
o
n
.

IC
T
&
V
C
S

H
e
lp
ru
ra
lly
is
o
la
te
d
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

m
a
in
ta
in
s
o
c
ia
l
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
a
n
d
g
a
in

a
c
c
e
s
s
to
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
b
o
u
t
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
,

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
a
n
d
g
ro
u
p
s
u
s
e
fu
l
to
th
e
m
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

b
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
p
ro
v
is
io
n

d
a
ta
a
n
d
u
p
ta
k
e
o
f
IC
T

tr
a
in
in
g
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
.

M
id
2
0
1
2

3
.3

C
re
a
te
m
o
re
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
in
S
h
o
rt
T
e
rm

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
&
R
e
a
b
le
m
e
n
t
fo
r
Y
o
u
n
g

A
d
u
lt
s
a
n
d
O
ld
e
r
P
e
o
p
le
to
e
n
a
b
le

g
re
a
te
r
u
s
e
o
f
ta
rg
e
te
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt
to

e
n
a
b
le
p
e
o
p
le
to
re
m
a
in
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
in

th
e
ir
o
w
n
h
o
m
e
s
fo
r
lo
n
g
e
r.

S
e
rv
ic
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

S
h
o
rt
T
e
rm

S
u
p
p
o
rt

M
o
re
p
e
o
p
le
re
m
a
in
in
g
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t

in
th
e
ir
o
w
n
h
o
m
e
s
fo
r
lo
n
g
e
r
a
n
d

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
o
n
C
o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
,
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
g
re
a
te
r

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
,
s
e
lf
e
s
te
e
m
a
n
d
q
u
a
lit
y

o
f
lif
e
fo
r
th
e
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

n
u
m
b
e
rs
o
f
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

u
s
in
g
th
e
s
e
rv
ic
e
a
n
d

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
o
th
e
r
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
e
.g
.
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s

to
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
c
a
re
.

O
c
t
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

Page 45



C
a
b
in
e
t,
1
9
th
O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
1
:
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
–
D
ra
ft
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
P
la
n

5

A
im

4
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
a
n
d
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t
in
th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.
E
n
a
b
le
g
ro
u
p
s
/p
e
o
p
le
to
h
e
lp
e
a
c
h
o
th
e
r
a
n
d
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
te
o
n
a

w
id
e
v
a
ri
e
ty
o
f
is
s
u
e
s
,
s
h
a
re
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
n
d
k
n
o
w
h
o
w
.

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
a
n
d
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t:

3
.4

R
e
v
ie
w
in
-h
o
u
s
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l

a
n
d
n
u
rs
in
g
h
o
m
e
s
:
T
o
k
e
e
p
u
p
w
it
h

re
d
u
c
e
d
d
e
m
a
n
d
th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
re
a
s
e
d

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
fr
o
m
o
th
e
r
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

P
ro
v
id
e
r

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
th
e
u
s
e
o
f
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t,
e
n
a
b
lin
g

th
e
c
o
u
n
c
il
to
re
d
u
c
e
c
o
s
ts
a
n
d

p
ro
v
id
e
b
e
tt
e
r
v
a
lu
e
fo
r
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

n
u
m
b
e
rs
o
f
n
e
w
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
a
n
d

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
n
u
m
b
e
rs
o
f

p
e
o
p
le
g
o
in
g
th
ro
u
g
h

re
a
b
le
m
e
n
t
s
e
rv
ic
e
.

O
c
t
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

4
.1

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
c
a
p
a
c
it
y

b
u
ild
in
g
in
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
to
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r:
s
ta
rt
u
p
s
,
e
x
is
ti
n
g
fo
r

p
ro
fi
t
a
n
d
n
o
t
fo
r
p
ro
fi
t
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

A
re
a

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
&

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
&

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

In
c
re
a
s
e
in
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r
a
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
le
a
rn
in
g

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
a
n
d
in
c
re
a
s
e
d

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
th
ro
u
g
h

in
c
o
m
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
.

M
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

N
I1
4
6
n
u
m
b
e
rs
o
f

A
d
u
lt
s
w
it
h
L
e
a
rn
in
g

D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
in

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t
a
n
d

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
in
d
a
y
c
e
n
tr
e

u
s
a
g
e
.

D
e
c
2
0
1
1
&

O
n
g
o
in
g

4
.2

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
m
a
x
im
is
e
it
s
lin
k
s
w
it
h

th
e
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
a
n
d
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
s
e
c
to
r
a
n
d

u
s
e
th
is
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
to
d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
re
la
te
d
to
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
.

V
C
S

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly

C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
m
o
re
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
to

th
e
p
e
o
p
le
w
h
o
n
e
e
d
it
th
ro
u
g
h

m
e
th
o
d
s
o
th
e
r
th
a
n
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y

b
a
s
e
d
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

re
g
u
la
r
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
f

p
ro
g
re
s
s
to
V
C
S

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

4
.3

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
fa
c
ili
ta
te
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
s
u
c
h
a
s
re
ti
re
m
e
n
t

c
o
u
rs
e
s

T
ra
in
in
g
/

V
C
S

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
le
v
e
ls
o
f
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
in
th
e
c
o
u
n
ty
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

re
g
u
la
r
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
f

p
ro
g
re
s
s
to
V
C
S

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

4
.4

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
h
e
lp
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
g
ro
u
p
s

p
ro
m
o
te
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
b
y
p
ro
v
id
in
g
a

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
fo
r
w
e
b
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n

IC
T

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
p
u
b
lic
it
y
fo
r
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry

g
ro
u
p
s
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
is
io
n
to

p
u
b
lic
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

w
e
b
tr
a
ff
ic
d
a
ta
.

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
2

Page 46



C
a
b
in
e
t,
1
9
th
O
c
to
b
e
r
2
0
1
1
:
A
d
u
lt
S
o
c
ia
l
C
a
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
–
D
ra
ft
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
P
la
n

6

A
im

5
:

E
n
s
u
re
e
a
c
h
p
e
rs
o
n
is
tr
e
a
te
d
a
s
a
n
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
w
h
e
th
e
r
a
s
a
p
e
rs
o
n
u
s
in
g
o
u
r
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
o
r
a
s
a
c
a
re
r,
fa
m
ily
m
e
m
b
e
r
o
r
fr
ie
n
d
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
e
ta
ilo
re
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt
to
th
o
s
e
w
h
o
n
e
e
d
it
.
E
n
a
b
lin
g
p
e
o
p
le
to
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
tl
y
s
e
le
c
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
q
u
a
lit
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
o
r
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
fe
e
l
s
e
c
u
re
a
b
o
u
t
th
e
ir
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l

s
a
fe
ty
a
n
d
lif
e
s
ty
le
.

P
ri
o
ri
ty
:

"
E
n
a
b
le
s
o
c
ia
lis
a
ti
o
n
th
ro
u
g
h
a
v
a
ri
e
ty
o
f
m
e
th
o
d
s
:

4
.5

W
e
w
ill
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
u
s
e
o
f
a
n
d
p
ro
m
o
te

V
C
S
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
–
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
a
n
a
u
d
it
o
f

S
h
ro
p
s
h
ir
e
’s
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
g
ro
u
p
s
–

fa
c
ili
ta
te
/e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
a
n
d

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n

V
C
S

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly

C
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r

B
e
tt
e
r
u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
c
o
u
n
ty
’s
la
rg
e

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
s
e
c
to
r
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
a
n
d
m
o
re

jo
in
t
w
o
rk
in
g
b
e
tw
e
e
n
g
ro
u
p
s
;
a
v
o
id

d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
o
f
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
/t
a
s
k
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
th
ro
u
g
h

V
C
S
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
re
g
is
te
r.

M
id
2
0
1
2

R
e

f
A

c
ti

o
n

L
e

a
d

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s

&
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

s

5
.1

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
ill
e
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
p
ro
m
o
te

th
e
u
s
e
o
f
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l

b
u
d
g
e
ts
/p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

L
e
a
d

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
c
h
o
ic
e
s
fo
r
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
b
e
tt
e
r
q
u
a
lit
y
o
f
lif
e

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
s
o
c
ia
l

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d

th
ro
u
g
h
in
d
ic
a
to
r
N
I1
3
0
,

A
v
e
ra
g
e
c
o
s
t
o
f
a

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l
b
u
d
g
e
t.

M
id
2
0
1
2

5
.2

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
o
f
c
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
v
id
e
r

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

E
n
a
b
le
e
q
u
a
l
a
n
d
fa
ir
c
h
a
rg
in
g

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
fo
r
c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
C
o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
o
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d

th
ro
u
g
h
in
c
o
m
e

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
.

A
p
ri
l
2
0
1
2

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

1

CommitteeandDate

Cabinet

7thMarch2012

Item

Public

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire – Next Steps

Responsible Officer Stephen Chandler

e-mail: Stephen.chandler@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:01743253704

1. Summary

1.1 The council carried out the most comprehensive consultation on adult social
care in the history of Shropshire in 2011, talking to more than 600 people about
how the council can deliver the best care possible.

1.2 During this ‘Live Life Your Way’ consultation people told us that they want to
have more choice and control over their services and they want a wider range
of personal support that enables them to remain independent and active
members of their communities for as long as possible. Indeed, local users and
their carers emphasised the importance of personalisation – supporting the
individual to ensure people receive care that best suits their needs.

1.3 We were told to move away from building based services and to prioritise:

• Support for the individual
• Flexible individual packages of care
• Independence and choice
• Independence at home
• Robust systems to enable people to make informed choices
• Offering variety, not just day centres
• Access to the same services within the community as everyone else

1.4 The consultation shaped a new strategy for adult social care, ‘Live Life Your
Way’, which drives forward these messages by focusing on equity, choice and
variety in the way support is offered and provided. This paper aims to provide
Cabinet with a progress update on the introduction of these personalised
services, including personal budgets for vulnerable people in Shropshire.

1.5 The paper also sets out the next steps on implementation to embed
personalisation as the way for individuals to choose and secure services and

Page 49



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

2

seeks Cabinet's support for this. This will then form the impetus behind
transforming current provision to more effectively meet needs.

2. Recommendations

Cabinetisrequestedto:

1. NotetheprogressonimplementingpersonalisationtodateandtoconfirmthatpersonalisationshouldbetheapproachofferedtoallpeoplewhoareeligiblewithinShropshire.

2. As part of realising the adult social care strategy, approve a period of
consultation on the personalisation of day time support and the extension of
the fair charging policy to achieve this. Consultation would include which
elements of services are to be charged for and the process and timeframe for
the introduction of any new arrangements.

3. Approvethedevelopmentofaclearsetofrecommendationsforthefutureprovisionofgoodquality,sustainabledaytimesupport.

REPORT

3 INTRODUCTION:

3.1 TheextensiveperiodofconsultationonthetransformationofadultsocialcareinShropshire‘LiveLifeYourWay’tookplacebetweenJulyandSeptember2011.Theconsultationfocusedonhowthecouncilcandeliverthebestcarepossiblebytalkingtothepeoplewhousetheservices,theircarers,supporters,familiesandfriends.Itprovidedanopportunitytolistentothepeopleusing,oraffectedbyourservices.Werecognisetheneedtoheartheviewsofthepeopleinvolved,tobetterunderstandwhattheywantandneed,andgivethemthechancetoshapethefutureofadultsocialcare.

3.2 Peopletolduswhatwasimportanttothem.Theyagreedwiththeneedtochange,sharinghowtheywantedtoseeservicesdeveloptomeettheirchangingneeds.Centraltotheadultsocialcarestrategy,basedontheseprioritiessharedduringconsultation,istheneedfor:

Increasedpersonalisationofservicestoindividuals.

Greaterchoiceandcontrolovertheservicestheyreceive.

Areviewofthedayservicesofferincludingin-houseprovision.

3.3 Ouraimistodelivertheaimsoftheadultsocialcarestrategywhichmeanswecanfacethechallengesofachievingbudgetsavingsandkeepingthequalityofservicespeoplewant.

3.4 WethereforeneedtodeveloptheimplementationofpersonalisedsupportinShropshire,givingpeopletheopportunitytochooseservices,ratherthanusmakingdecisionsforthem.SincethiscommencedthroughapilotinJanuary2010,thenumbersofpeoplewhohavetakentheopportunitytocontrol,influenceanddirecthowtheirsupportisorganisedthroughapersonalisedmannerhaveincreasedyearonyear.Theservice aims to offer all new referrals to adult social care the opportunity to
have their support providedinapersonalisedway.Thishasenabledustoincreasethenumberofpeoplewhohavehadthissupportarrangement.Inaddition,individualswhentheirexistingsupportisreviewed,areencouragedtoexplorethepotentialformovingtomorepersonalisedservice.

3.5 Thetablebelowshowsthegrowingnumberofpeoplesupportedusingpersonalisationasthecoreofferinadultsocialcare.

2009 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 – 2012

Number of people who have a

personalised service

1919 3341 3600 (Predicted)

Page 50



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

3

3.6 Whilst it is clearly important to look at the numbers of people taking up and

being supported in this way, it is equally important to reflect on some of the

positive experiences that people have had. Individuals have said that

personalisation has allowed them to remain much more an integral part of their

family and community and the changes have allowed them to be much more

creative with the money the council provides than they believe the council itself

may have found possible.

3.7 BothCoalitionGovernmentpolicy,andmostimportantlyfeedbackfromserviceusersandtheircarers,isthatweneedtomakepersonalisationthecoreofferofsupport.Itisalsoimportantthatpersonalisationbecomesboththevehicleforservicedeliveryandforservicetransformation.Thisisbeingprogressedusingthefeedbackfromthe‘LiveLifeYourWay’consultation,strategyandsubsequentimplementationplan.

3.8 Therehavebeenanumberofchangeswhereservicesandsupportweretransformedwithpersonalisationbeingthevehicleforthis.MostnotablyTheGrangeDayCentre,wheredespiteinitialconcernsaboutthefuture,individualswhohavemovedfromTheGrangenowtellusthattheyenjoyagreaterrangeofopportunitiespersonalisedtotheirindividualneeds,whilstretainingthoseelementsofthedaycentrethattheyvalued(theopportunitytomeetwithfriends,understandandmaintainfriendships).

4. DAY TIME SUPPORT

4.1 Oneofthekeyareasforservicetransformationrelatestotheprovisionofdaytimeopportunities.Theservicehasalreadybeenworkingcloselywithserviceusers,carersandexistingprovidersofsupporttousepersonalbudgetsasalternativesorasacomplementtothetraditionaldaycentremodel.Personalbudgetsallowserviceuserstochoosewhattheywanttospendtheirmoneyon,basedonwhatwillmeettheirneeds.Webelievethatitisabsolutelynecessary,onthebasisofwhatpeoplehavetoldusandonthebasisofensuringmodern,effectiveservices,thatwetransformtheofferofdaytimesupportwithpersonalisation at the forefront of this transformation agenda.

4.2 We want people who use the services, their carers, supporters, families and

friends to be at the centre of this process, including them in the planning as well

as the transition to the new and modern support offered.

4.3 We propose consulting on the implementation of personalisation as a support

for daytime activities. This is consistent with one of the key messages that we

heard during the Live Life Your Way consultation when people toldustheywantedavarietyofservices,ratherthananemphasisondaycentres.

4.4 Modernisation

4.4.1 Wewanttodevelopaservicethatmeetstheneedsofourcustomersandatthesametimeaddressesthefinancialpressureswearefacing.Weareconfidentthatbychanginginthisway,wecandeliverthenewservicesthatpeoplehavetoldustheywant,andmakethesavingsneeded.

4.4.2 Togivepeopletheequity,choiceandvarietytheyhavetoldustheywant,inthewaythatdayservicesareofferedandprovided,weneedto:

Extendtheuseofpersonalbudgetstoallservices.

Sustaincurrentlevelsofsupporttothoseinneed.

Ensureconsistencyofchargingandcontributionsforcurrentservices(atpresentsomepeoplepayandsomedon’twhichisperceivedasunfairbythosewhopay).

4.5 Long Term Gains:

4.5.1Theimplementationofafairandpersonalisedapproachtodaytimesupportwillcontributetoanumberoflongtermgainsincluding:

Dayserviceredesigndriventhroughpromotionofcustomerchoice.

Moreflexibleandresponsiveserviceforlocalpeople.

Morecost-effectiveprovision,givingbettervalue-for-money.

Betteroutcomesbasedonindividual’s needs.

Increased employment and training options through joint work with
partner organisations.

Page 51



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

4

Moreprovisionandpotentiallyawiderrangeofprovisiondeliveredbynotforprofitandvoluntaryorganisationswithinourlocalcommunities.

Standardisationofaconsistentcontributionspolicy.

4.6 In House Charging:

4.6.1 The way the council operates the charging and contribution arrangements for

in house or directly provided day care is inconsistent with all other adult

social care support provided by the council, and is also inconsistent with

such support from other providers of day care, as well as being

inconsistent with similar provision by other authorities within the region.

4.6.2 There is in fact, a disincentive for individuals who attend council delivered day

centres to consider personalised alternatives, as at present they do not

make a contribution to the cost of the day care placement, transport to it

and any day care meals and refreshments provided. However people

using other adult social care services such as home care are making a

contribution.

4.6.3 Aspartoftheconsultationexercisewithusersofthecouncil’sdaycentreswewillincludeaspecificproposaltohaveastandardapproachtocontributionsandchargessothatinShropshiretheyareinlinewithotherprovidersandcouncils.Thisproposalrecognisestheneedtohaveaconsistent,fairerchargingpolicy,whichaddressesthecurrentinequalitiesinmakingcontributions.

4.6.4 Theapproachalsoaimstoencouragemorecommunityandvoluntaryorganisationstocomeforwardandaddtotherangeofservicespeoplecanchoose.Asmorepeoplearegiventheopportunitytousepersonalbudgets,thereneedstobearangeofopportunitiesavailableforpeopletobuyusingtheirbudget.Thesecanbeservicesthatareprovidedbyvoluntaryorganisations,localgroups,localbusinessesorbythecouncil.Thesedifferentorganisationswillhavearangeofactivitiesavailabletopurchaseandaclearpricelistfortheseservicessothatpeopleknowwhattheycangetfortheirpersonalbudgetamount.

4.6.5 While it is proposed that day care services would be brought into an

overall charging policy, any policy would still ensure that no-one

makes a contribution unless they are able to pay.

5. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

5.1 Risk Management Appraisal

5.1.1 Theproposedimplementationofpersonalisationwillensureanequitableapproachtoofferingservicesandsupport.

5.1.2 Clientcontributionsareassessedonanindividual’sabilitytopaybasedontheirincome,capitalandbenefitentitlement.Bynotincludingtheseservicesintheassessedcontributionserviceuserswhoselectdaycareservicesusingtheirpersonalbudget,willbereceivingfreedaycaresupport,freetransportandfreemealswhereasserviceusersusingtheirpersonalbudgetstoaccesscommunitybasedsupportwillbemakinganassessedcontributionforthese.Somepeoplearepayingfordaycareandsomearenot.Thisisinequitable,isperceivedasunfair,andpotentiallychallengeablebythosewhodomakeacontribution.

5.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal

5.2.1 Theproposaltoimplementpersonalisationacrossallserviceoffers,andaspartofthatreview,theapplicationofafairerchargingpolicy,iscompatiblewithHumanRightsAct.

5.3 Equalities Appraisal

5.3.1 Theimplementationofpersonalisationwillensurethatindividualneedsaremetinatailoredandindividualway.Theinclusionofdaycarewithinthecontributionsframework,andsubsequentlytheintroductionofchargesfordaycare,willensurethatallvulnerableadultseligibleforservices,regardlessofhowtheychoosetomeettheirneedsusingapersonalbudget,willbenefitfromfairandequitableservicesbasedonanindividual’sassessedabilitytopay.

5.4 Community and other Consultation

5.4.1Thebasisofdevelopingservicescontinuestobeworkingwiththepeoplewhousethem.

Page 52



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

5

5.4.2 IfapprovedbyCabinet,aperiodofconsultationwillbeundertakenfrom8March2012to3May2012.Theconsultationexercisewillfocusontwokeyareasassetouthere:

Thepersonalisationofdaytimesupportincludingthefutureofdaycareaspartofthatoffer.

Theneedtoaddresstheinconsistenciesinchargingandcontributionsmadeinrelationtodaycarebyextendingthefairerchargingpolicy.

5.4.3 Theconsultationprocesshasbeendevelopedbaseduponaninclusiveapproachwithspecificfocusoncriticalareas.AfullconsultationplanisattachedatAppendixAandthesurveyatAppendixB.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 Itisanticipatedthattheextensionthefairerchargingpolicywillresultinincreasedincometocontributiontowardsthecostofsupport.

6.2 Futuresavingsproposedinthemediumtermfinancialplanincludebudgetsavingslinkedtoinhousedayservicesasfollows:

2012/13£250k
2013/14£750k
2014/15£950k

7. Additional Information (Fairer Charging)

7.1 The current position

7.1.1 Financial Assessment:

ThefinancialassessmentisundertakenbytheBenefitsOptionsTeam.Thesameassessmentprocessisappliedconsistentlyforeveryone,theamountofcontributionanyindividualisaskedtocontributetothecostoftheircareisbasedonthefinancialassessment.Theassessmentlooksattheindividual’sincomeandexpenditurebeforedeterminingthelevelofincomethatcanbeusedbythecounciltocontributetothecostoftheircare.Anationalminimumincomelevelplus25%mustberetainedbytheindividualfollowingtheassessment.

7.1.2 People likely to be affected:

Therearecurrentlyover900peopleattendingsomeformofdaycarecentreinShropshire.Lessthan700peopleattendaShropshireCouncilprovideddaycentreandjustovera100attendonlyadaycentre.Themajorityofpeopleaffectedareadultswithalearningdisability.

Individualswhocurrentlyonlyattendadaycentrewillnotbemakinganycontributionatalltotheirsupport.Individualswhohaveamixedserviceprovision,suchasdomiciliarycareanddaycare,willbemakinganassessedcontributionbasedonthedomiciliarycareelementonly.

Individualswhohavechosentoaccessarangeofdaytimecommunitybasedactivities,usingapersonalbudgettobuywhattheyneed,willbemakinganassessedcontribution.

7.1.3 What do other local authorities do?

WehaveconsultedwithotherauthoritiesandShropshireistheonlyonethatdoesnothaveachargingregime,allhaveachargingregimethoughthisdoesvaryacrossalllocalauthorities.Aspartoftheconsultationprocesswewillconsultontheelementstoincludewithinanewchargingframework.

8. Conclusion:

Page 53



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

6

8.1 TheimplementationofpersonalisationasacoreofferiscriticaltodeliveringCoalitionGovernmentPolicyand,moreimportantly,theexpectationsofthelocalusersandtheircarers’,aswellasensuringthereisamodernefficientserviceprovided.

8.2 Duringconsultationpeopletoldusthattheywanttohavemorechoiceandcontrolovertheirservicesandtheywantawiderrangeofpersonalsupportthatenablesthemtoremainindependentandactivemembersoftheircommunitiesforaslongaspossible.

8.3 Itiscriticalthatservicetransformationisunderpinnedbypersonalisationandthatdaytimesupportisnowtransformedaspartoftheoverallagenda.Tocreateafair,clearpolicy,whichenablesmorepeopletousepersonalbudgetsandencouragesmoreorganisationstoaddtotheservicesavailable,needstobeaddressedthroughconsultationandsensitivechangemanagement,astheseinconsistenciesarepubliclyunacceptable.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does

not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

CabinetJune29th2011TransformationofAdultSocialCareLiveLife-YourWay.

SaferandConfidentCommunitiesScrutinyReport–AdultSocialCareStrategy5Oct2011

AdultSocialCareTaskandFinishGroupReport5Oct2011

CabinetOctober19th2011‘LiveLifeyourWay’-AdultSocialCareStrategyReportonConsultationOutcomesandProposedStrategy

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)

CouncillorAnnHartley

CouncillorSteveCharmley

Local Member

All–thisisShropshirewide

Appendices

AppendixA–ConsultationPlan

APPENDIX A

CONSULTATION ON THE PERSONALISATION OF DAY SUPPORT IN

SHROPSHIRE

1.0 WHY we are consulting:

1.1 TheGovernmentispromotingthecreationofmorepersonalisedservicesforAdultSocialCareusers.Personalisationmeansthinkingaboutpublicservicesandsocialcareandsupportinanentirelydifferentway–startingwiththepersonratherthantheservice.Itrequiresthetransformationofadultsocialcare.

1.2 OverathreemonthconsultationperiodinJuly–September2011wetalkedtoover600ShropshireresidentsaboutthetransformationofAdultSocialCareinShropshire.Duringthisconsultationpeopletoldusthattheywantedtohavemorechoiceandcontrolovertheirservicesandthattheywantawiderrangeofpersonalsupportthatenablesthemtoremainindependentandactivemembersoftheircommunitiesforaslongaspossible.Wecallthis‘Personalisation’:

1.3 Wewillensurethatindividuals,notinstitutions,takecontroloftheircarethrough‘Self-DirectedSupport.Self-DirectedSupportfitswithintheGovernment’s‘personalisation’agenda.Itisaninnovativeapproachtoprovidingsocialcaretoolderpeopleandadultswithlearningdisabilities,mentalhealthissues,physicaldisabilitiesandsensoryimpairment.InsteadofapackageofcarebeingorganisedbyShropshireCouncil,Self-DirectedSupportgivesindividualsmoreopportunitytoidentifytheirownneedsandenablesthemtoplanhowtomeetthem.InShropshirepeoplewhoareeligibleforsocialcaresupportarenowofferedaPersonal Budgettohelpthemdothis.

2.0 WHAT we are consulting on:

Page 54



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

7

This consultation has two main strands:

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time support

2.1 In order for personal budgets to be effective there must be a range of
opportunities available for people to buy using their budget. These can be
services that are provided by voluntary organisations, local groups, and local
businesses or by the Council. These different service providers will have a
range of activities available to purchase and will have a clear price list for
these services so that people know what they can get for their personal
budget amount.

2.2 We want to enable individuals to have maximum choice and control over their
lives, to support people to be independent to lead fuller lives. Services need to
be personalised with a focus on individuals and not institutions. We aim to
encourage people to interact more within their local communities rather than
being dependent on Council provided services.

2.3 We will consult on the implementation of personalisation as a support for
daytime activities. We wish to put stakeholders at the centre of the planning
for the transformation of this important part of our transformation agenda
including them in the planning as well as the transition to a new and modern
support offer.

Strand2–IntroductionofContributions(Followingtheappropriatefinancialassessment)forShropshireCouncilprovidedDayServices:

2.4 In order for Shropshire Council to offer services to people with personal
budgets, a clear charging system needs to be put in place. Currently there are
some discrepancies in the way people contribute to and are charged for
different social care services within Shropshire Council and this needs to be
rectified to ensure that processes are fairly and transparently administered
across all services.

2.5 Atpresent,anindividualconsideringhowtousetheirpersonalbudgetfindsthatthelocalauthoritydaycentresdonotchargeforanyoftheelementsthatonewouldnormallyexpecttocontributeto,i.e.transportgettingtoandfromthecentre,refreshmentswhilstatthecentre,andacontributiontotheactivitiesundertakenatthecentre.Whereasotherservicessuchasdomiciliarysupport(homecare)arechargeabletothosewhoaredeemedabletopayfollowingafinancialassessment.Thismeansthatthereisaninequalitywithintheserviceswecurrentlyoffer.Inordertorectifythisinequalityandalsomakeitpossibletoofferawidervarietyofservicestopeopleweneedtointroducethefollowingcharges.

2.6 FromMay2012,weproposetoincludethecostofdaycareandanyassociatedtransportcostswithinthefairerchargingassessmentlinkedtoself-directedsupportwhichisusedtoascertainanindividual’sabilitytopaytowardstheircare.Anymealsthatarerequired,overandaboveadrinkonarrival,wouldbepaidforseparatelybytheindividualtothedaycentretheyattendandwouldbedependentonanindividuals’choiceofmealsandthechargesappliedatthecentretheyareattending.

2.7 Inreality,thiswillaffectanindividualinanumberofways:

Atcentreswheremealsareavailable,anindividualwillpayforthemealsandbeveragestheychoose.

Atcentreswherenomealsareavailable,individualswilleitheraccessthecommunityformealsormaketheirownarrangementsastheydonow.

DayCarewillbechargedatafixedcostperday,whichwillincludetransporttoandfromthecentre.Forthoseindividualswhochoosetomaketheirownwaytothedaycentre,thefixedcostofthedaycarewillbereduced.

Thecostsofindividualcentresmayvarydependentonthelevelofsupportrequired.

2.8 Thisapproachisequitable,inthatthoseindividualseligibleforthemobilitycomponentofDLAandwhohavetheirownmobilitycarwillnothavetopaythehigherdaycarerate.Equally,regardlessofwhereanindividuallives,thereisnofinancialpenaltywhichwouldbeadisadvantageforpeoplelivinginruralareas.

Page 55



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult

Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B

Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire Next Steps.doc

8

3.0 WHO will we consult?

3.1 We will consult widely on these proposed changes. The Council will seek the
views and aspirations of:

Adults who use day services

Those who care for adults and older people who use day services

Advocacy organisations

Independent sector organisations

Health Trusts and GPs

Relevant Cabinet and Local members

Residents of Shropshire

Staff

General Public

3.2 A clear and up to date record will be kept of all information sent out, who has
been consulted, how and when, including the use of reference numbers and
summary of response for ease of review. All responses will be acknowledged
by a standard letter/email which will be logged.

4.0 HOW we will consult:

4.1 Basedonacarefullydesignedcommunicationstrategyandfeedbackframework,wewillconsultwidelyonthetwostrandsoutlinedaboveoveran8weekperiodbeginning8thMarch2012to3rdMay2012;wewilltalktokeyinterestgroupsandstakeholdersbydifferentmethodsincluding:

Targetedstakeholdermeetings

Specificeventsforourstaff

PublicandStakeholderevents

Memberbriefings

Smallerdiscussiongroupsatlocaldaycentres

Publicitythroughvariousmediaincluding:ShropshireCouncilwebsite,Facebookpage,Twitter,pressrelease,emails.Publicresponseswillbereceivedbytelephone,email,postandviasocialnetworkingsites.

UseofSelfAdvocacygroup,TakingPartCoffeeChatClubs,andLeadershipgrouptoconsultwithadultswithlearningdisabilities.

Ethnographicresearchwithusersofdayservicesandtheirfamilies.

Page 56



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in

Shropshire Next Steps.doc

9

Provisional Events Timetable:

Stakeholder Group Event Type Area Venue Date Time Strand

Staff Briefing in team meetings n/a n/a 29/2/12-7/3/12 n/a

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

Contributions

Local Members Member Briefing Central Shirehall 27/02/2012 5pm-7pm

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

Contributions

Key Stakeholders Pre consultation meeting n/a Shirehall 5th March n/a

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

Contributions

Public, stakeholders, service users,

family, carers, members, partners Public Event

Central

Shirehall Council

Chamber

Wednesday 21st

March
2.30pm – 4pm

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support

South Helena Lane Day Centre

Wednesday 28th

March 3.30pm – 5pm

North

Oswestry Council

Chamber Monday 16th April 10.30am – 12pm

Selected stakeholders and those

affected by the proposals Selected Stakeholder event Central

Guildhall Council

Chamber, Shrewsbury Wednesday 18th April 2.30pm – 4pm Strand 2 – Introduction of Contributions

Parents and Carers of Adults with

Learning Disabilities Day Services

Users Discussion Groups

Central

Hartley’s

Linking into existing meeting mechanisms in day

centres

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

Contributions

Abbotswood

North East Wayfarers Mkt Drayton

North West Lorne St Oswestry

South West Helena Lane

South East

Bridgnorth Council

Chamber

Adult with Learning Disabilities who

use day services

Taking Part coffee chat clubs at each

day centre TBC TBC

Linking into existing meeting mechanisms in day

centres

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

Contributions

Older People who use day services

and their Carers Discussion Groups

North East Bradbury

Linking into existing meeting mechanisms in day

centres

Strand 1 - Personalisation and day time

support and Strand 2 – Introduction of

ContributionsNorth West The Meres Linking into existing meeting mechanisms in day

P
age 57



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult Services\2013\1 August 2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in

Shropshire Next Steps.doc

centres

South West Helena Lane

Linking into existing meeting mechanisms in day

centresP
age 58



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult Services\2013\1 August

2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire

Next Steps.doc

Questionsforconsultees:

These questions will be used as the basis for our consultation events and

discussion groups.

Strand 1:

We want to enable individuals to have maximum choice and control over their lives,

to support people to be independent to lead fuller lives. To achieve this, services for

day time support need to be personalised with a focus on individuals and not

institutions.

We want to talk to people about the implementation of personalisation as a support

for daytime activities. To enable us to plan for the future of day services based on

what people want to do.

1. What does personalisation mean to you?

2. How do you think personalisation applies to day time support?

3. How do you think personalisation should be implemented in terms of day time

support?

4. What is important to you in terms of the day time support you receive now?

5. What is important for you in terms of the personalisation of day time support in

the future?

6. What do you want to see from future personalised services?

7. What is important to you as we move from the traditional model of day

services to a future more personalised model?

Strand 2:

AtthemomentpeoplewhoaccesscouncilrundaycentresdonotcontributetowardstheirPersonalBudgetamount,howeverpeoplewhousetheirPersonalBudgetforcommunitybasedsupportdohavetocontribute.Thisisunfairandmeansthatsomepeoplepayandsomepeopledon’t.

InordertomakePersonalisationworkweneedtomakethiscontributionprocessfairacrossalltypesofPersonalBudget.ThismeansthatfromnowonpeoplewhoaccesscouncilrundaycentreswillbeassessedontheirabilitytocontributetowardstheirPersonalBudgetaswell.

Wewanttomakesurethatthesecontributionsareimplementedinawaythatisfairtoallourclientssowewanttotalktoyouabouthowwedothis.

1. Doyouthinkweshouldchargeatafixedcostperdayforthedaycentre,includingtransporttoandfromthedaycentre?

2. Doyouthinkweshouldaskpeopletopayforeachmealanddrinktheychooseattheirdaycentre?Or,Doyouthinkweshouldchargeonefeeperdayforallmealsanddrinks?

Page 59



APPENDIX B

H:\Democratic Services\Committee\Cabinet\Portfolio Holders decision making\Adult Services\2013\1 August

2013\2 Day Service Reconfiguration\2B Appendix B Personalisation of Adult Social Care Services in Shropshire

Next Steps.doc

3. Doyouthinkweshouldallowfordifferentoptionstobechosenbyindividuals?

4. Doyouthinkweshouldreducetheamountwechargeforthosepeoplewhochoosetomaketheirownwaytothecentre?

5. Doyouthinkweshouldvarythechargesofindividualcentresdependentonthelevelofsupportthecentreprovides?

Page 60



APPENDIX C

Person A

Is a 47 year old man who lives independently in Shrewsbury with some support from
his sister. J had been in receipt of a five day a week day service, transport, and
respite provided by Shared Lives.

A attended Greenacres for four days a week where he spent time using the small
greenhouse near the farmhouse to grow plants and flowers. J enjoyed spending time
following his own creative pursuits, he had designed and built a feature in the
garden, using blue Lobelia as a water feature and had built a willow arch which has
been incorporated into the nature walk. A did sometimes struggle with the noise
levels at Greenacres and would on those occasions take himself off to the bird hide
where he was able to take photographs of the wildlife.

A had a review from the Day Services Transformation team in July 2012.

Hartley’s day service was for one day a week A usually spent his time at Harley’s
using the computer where he was able to download the photo’s he had taken and
put them onto disc. The photos were then used for the Handmade cards Hartley’s
sell, these are the bestselling item in the Enterprise range from Hartley’s. A did feel
some frustration at times due to the noise levels and the lack of available computers,
A did not interact on a social level with the other clients.

A’s original care package annual cost was £12,250.12 per year

A has had some work placements in the past mainly working in Horticulture, this has
caused A some health issues, mainly Back Pain which meant that A was unable to
continue working. These placements were with Green Horizons and Pathways, A
also had a paid job working for an elderly couple in their garden, this fell through,
possibly due to lack of on-going peer support offered to A.
A is interested in working with plants but on a more design level than heavy manual
work.

Computer and Graphic work has also been discussed as an option for A due to his
creative skills. A is a very skilled artist and model maker, and is able to take
Photographic images of a very high quality.

The reviewer identified the most important things to A are:

The opportunity to continue taking and working on his photos
Using a computer
Socialising with friends
Gardening

Page 61



APPENDIX C

A worked with the Transformation team who spent time developing an alternative
package to meet his needs. He now accesses his local library one day a week to
use the computers in a quieter, community setting. He required several weeks
support from the team to walk from his home to the local Library to ensure that this
new routine became embedded into his weekly programme, this is now firmly in
place. A appreciates the quieter atmosphere and has become confident in using the
café and other facilities on offer, taking out books and DVD’s on a regular basis.

A was also supported to volunteer for a day at the Wildlife Trust; he is able to use
Public transport to access this group with a pick up point in town. A obtains a great
deal from being part of this mainstream group, he enjoys the conservation work and
is also given the opportunity to take photographs of the locality and wildlife on the
sites. A has become so enthusiastic about this work he now volunteers for an extra
day a week.

A accesses Greenacres for one day a week, he has chosen to self-fund this as he
does not meet the current criteria to receive a day service. A has been supported by
the Transformation team to learn the bus route and is now able to travel on Public
Transport out to the farm and back.

A has one day a week at home which he spends with his sister; they spend quality
time together accessing a variety of trips to places of interest, A is always
enthusiastic to explore new places and enjoys the opportunity to take his
photographs.

A states that his week is much better now with a good balance of things to do!!

Current cost of care package – zero.

The positive benefits to A are:

Increased independence, now able to use public transport

Less reliance on Council based services, more use of local resources

More local community interaction

Increased Confidence

Increasing personal responsibility, making decisions around daily activities,
managing household budget efficiently to ensure important activities can take
place.

Feels more valued as a member of his community

Positive steps towards employment

Page 62



APPENDIX C

Person B

B is a woman in her mid-forties who has Downs Syndrome, she lives at home with
her sister.

B had a five day a week day service from Sabrina Court, including transport via PTS.
J also was in receipt of Respite 42 nights per year at Barleyfields.

B has been supported to work in The Links Café, initially she was supported by the
day service staff, this has now been removed from her package and her sister
arranges transport. This placement has been successful and B is now in the
process of approaching voluntary organisations to find new placements that will help
her to develop her skills further.
B has been offered one placement on Monday’s at the Barnabus Church helping
with the preparation of the lunch and then serving and clearing away.
B is currently being supported to approach Age Uk to ask about a possible work
placement at the Thursday Older People’s group, in her local area.

Things that are important to B:

Helping people

Having a work placement that is supportive

Reducing her day service provision

Respite is important to both J and her sister to maintain the placement in the
home.

Self worth through employment

Developing skills

B’s original care package annual cost was £19,177.53

New Support Plan
Monday – Barnabus Centre
Tuesday – Day at home
Wednesday – Sabrina
Thursday – Age UK
Friday – The Links, until alternative sourced
Respite to be provided by Shared Lives
New Costs
£1772.76 Sabrina
£2,064.24 Respite 42 nights Shared Lives
Total £3,837.00

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D – Day Service Transformation Plan  

  No on 

register 

Average 

daily 

attendance 

Max  

Building 

Capacity  

Proposed Transformation Outcome 

Abbotswood 

 

29 20  30 This building develops as a community resource being used for more community based activities, some of which may include day time activities.  

Albert Road 

 

32 21  30  Mencap building on Council land. Mencap not currently interested in partnership beyond their evening and weekend use.  

Aquamira 

 

20 15  20+ There is  need to ensure maximum use of this resource for people with the most complex needs.  

Avalon 18 14   This building is becoming harder to maintain and to support positive services. There is a need to re-provide this facility.  

Bradbury 

 

31 8  30+  Locality developments – work in progress. Recommendation to be received in September.  

Church 

Stretton 

14 8   Some service users can continue to use support from Mayfair centre. Some will access opportunities in their local community i.e. Bishops Castle. 

Corner Patch 16 7    This service will be considered for commercial development. 

Greenacres 38 21  30  This service will be considered for commercial development. 

Hartleys 33 21    This service will close.  Existing users will take up individual service options or if needed will attend another building based service (this could be an existing community resource) 

Helena Lane 

 

36 18  30+ This building develops as a community resource being used for more community based activities, some of which may include day time activities.. 

Innage Lane 35 16  25 This service will be subject to review following detailed discussions with stakeholders. 

Lorne Street 27 15   This building will be re-provided in conjunction with Avalon.  

Maesbury  

 

17 11  15  This service will be considered for commercial development 

Meres 35 16  30 This service has already gone through significant transformation; support will be re-commissioned using a locality commissioning model. 

Oak Farm 49 20  30 This service will be considered for commercial development. 

Sabrina Court 28 16    This service will close.  Existing users will take up individual service options or if needed will attend another building based service (this could be an existing community resource) 

Wayfarers 

 

30 17  25 This building develops as a community resource being used for more community based activities, some of which may include day time activities. 

P
age 65



APPENDIX D – Day Service Transformation Plan  

P
age 66



Appendix E FULL YEAR PRO-RATA

PROPOSED SAVINGS

POTENTIAL

SAVINGS 1415

PERM

ONE OFF

DATE OF

EFFECT

POTENTIAL

SAVINGS IN 1314

Staff savings linked to reduction in numbers needed to support reduced SU attendees 413,555- on-going April 413,555- Based on Budget Build Up 5kN91/39223

Staff savings linked to reduction in staffing numbers as part of day centre rationalisation 287,009- on-going October 143,504-

10% Day Service Employee budgets that are not part of

closure plan

Re-Structure of 1 base - 25% staffing efficiency 41,396- on-going July 31,047- Inclusive of admin & management

Staffing savings from centre reductions from October 2013 (Shrewsbury & Church Stretton) 582,003- on-going Oct/Feb 211,150- Inclusive of admin & management

Staffing savings due to accomodation consildation (Oswestry) 404,210- on-going 2014 0 Inclusive of admin & management

Closure of 3 transport routes 141,000- on-going Oct/Feb 70,500- 1 full year 1 half year 1 in 2014

York House 16,000- on-going Oct 8,000- from Oct

ADDITIONAL COSTS - RECURRING

Cost of 1 new base 205,765 on-going 2014 0 50% of cost of Avalon & Lorne Street

10 York House Residents 65,000 on-going Oct 32,500 premium to home to cover non-attendance from Oct

PB in lieu of daycare attendance 81,120 on-going Oct 40,560 Based on PB £20/day x 3 days for 26 people from Oct

6 Staff 72,900 on-going Oct 36,450

21 clients(30%) transferring into alternative day services -

additional staffing requirement

RECURRING SAVING 1,460,387- 768,246-

ADDITIONAL COSTS - ONE OFF

Redevelopment costs for new Oswestry base 100,000 one off - This cost would be met from Capital

NETT SAVING 2013/14 1,360,387- 768,246-

P
age 67



P
age 68

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX F

Equality Impact Needs Assessment (EINA)

Part 1 EINA (initial assessment with preliminary consultation)

Name of policy, procedure, function, project, etc

Day Services Reconfiguration

Names (list those involved

in carrying out assessment)

Job titles Contact details

Ruth Houghton
Head of Social Care:
Improvement and Efficiency

Ruth.houghton@shropshire.gov.uk

01743 253093

Date commenced July 2013

Aims of the policy and description

Reconfiguration of day services as part of the change to becoming a commissioning Council
whereby individuals as personal budget holders become commissioners of services to meet
their own individual assessed needs.

Stakeholders, people concerned, interested parties

Shropshire Council
Services Users attending day services
Family Carers
Shropshire CCG
Providers
Employees
Health and Wellbeing Board

Progress summary Date Signature

Head of service Part 1 24 July
2013

Head of service Part 2 (FULL)

Potential Impact on Target Groups – Preliminary Consultation (see page 2)

Assess each of the following areas separately and consider how the policy may affect people’s
Human Rights

Page 69



APPENDIX F

If the answer to any of these is Yes to any High Impact criteria, you must prepare a Full (Part 2) EINA.
Preliminary consultation will be required to help identify the impact and evidence of this recorded.

Initial assessment (and preliminary consultation)

Protected
Characteristic
groups

Significant (High)
negative impact Full
EINA required

Significant (High)
positive impact Full
EINA required

Medium or Low
impact Part 1 EINA
only required

Race (also ethnicity,

nationality, culture, language,
gypsy, traveller)

Low

Disability (mental & physical
impairments, mobility, manual
dexterity, speech, hearing,
learning, understanding, visual,
MS, cancer, HIV)

Medium – the existing
in house day services
support adults with
learning disabilities
who will be supported
to access alternative
means of support
using personal
budgets.

Sex (also associated aspects:
safety, single-parenting, caring
responsibility, potential for
bullying & harassment)

Low

Gender re-
assignment (also

associated aspects: safety,
single-parenting, caring
responsibility, potential for
bullying & harassment)

Low

Sexual Orientation
(heterosexual, lesbian, gay, bi-
sexual)

Low

Age (children, young people,

working age, elderly)

Medium – most day
services are for
people aged 18-65.
There are also day
services for over 65.
All age groups will be
supported through
personal budgets to
choose alternative
provision and support.

Religion & belief
(Hinduism, Judaism, Buddhism,
Christianity, Islam, Sikhism,
Shinto, Non-conformists)

Low

Pregnancy &
Maternity Low

Page 70



APPENDIX F

Other (other target groups
relevant to your service, for
example, family carers, marital
status, rurality, poverty)

Medium – family
carers who rely on
day services for
respite will still be
supported as eligible
users will be able to
access wider
community based
services.

Medium – employees
– the majority of the
work force are female
and part-time. For re-
provisioned services
TUPE will apply.
There may be some
redundancies. There
will also be new
employment
opportunities as
personal assistants
for people who use
direct payments to
meet their assessed
needs.

High Significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place
or no evidence available, urgent need for consultation with customers, general public, employees

Medium Some potential impact, some mitigating measures in place but no evidence available how effective
they are, would be beneficial to consult with customers, general public, employees

Low Almost bordering with non-relevance to the EINA process (heavily legislation led, very little discretion
exercised, limited public facing aspect, national policy)

What is your evidence for your answers to the above questions?

Consider quantitative and qualitative data. Customer equality monitoring data, consultation process, research
data. Log details in Evidence part of form (page 4)

1. Knowledge of services provision
2.Performance Indicator Information
3.Consultation in 2011 on transformation of Social Care
4.Consultation in 2012 on detailed transformation and changes to day service charging and
provision

Important: Only policy, procedure, function, etc rated as High Impact needs a Full (Part 2)
EINA. Full assessment requires more in-depth consultation with members from the target

groups highlighted as being at the receiving end of any potential High Impact.

Page 71



APPENDIX F

Part 2 – Full EINA

Sources of evidence

Useful sources of information: complaints monitoring, customer records, census data, focus groups, face to face
interviews, surveys, related information produced by other public bodies)

Consider the following when assessing the impact & seeking evidence/during

consultation

1. How is the policy likely to affect the promotion of equality and the elimination of discrimination in each of

the areas?
a) Give a selection of key facts relevant to each area
b) If there is little or no evidence, say what you will do to find some evidence and give examples of the types of
evidence you might find

2. How will the policy meet the needs of the different communities and groups?

3. Give details of any consultation that has already been done which is relevant to this policy

4. Give examples of existing good practice in this area, for example, measures to make it easier for people in

particular groups to influence policy

Challenges and opportunities: questions to consider throughout the assessment

discrimination,
harassment or inequality? (Consider the alternatives)

helping different groups of people to get on well together to improve
community relations?

negative impact, what are the reasons?
practical changes will help reduce any adverse impact on particular groups?

improve access to take-up of services and understanding the policy?
promote equality and eliminate discrimination when you procure goods and services?

Detailed evidence

Source of evidence & baseline data Outline of impact

Race

Disability Adults with learning disabilities and
older people will be affected

Building based services will be
reconfigured. Individuals will be able
through the use of personal budgets
to access alternative means of
support including community based
and peer support, education, training,
leisure and employment.

Some specialist building based
services will remain for the most

Page 72



APPENDIX F

profoundly disabled. These though
may not in the future be provided by
Shropshire Council.

Sex

Gender Re-
assignment

Sexual
Orientation

Age Day Services are provided for adults
with learning disabilities aged 18-65.
Day Services are provided for older
people over 65.

Building based services will be
reconfigured. Individuals will be able
through the use of personal budgets
to access alternative means of
support including community based
and peer support, education, training,
leisure and employment.

Religion &
Belief

Pregnancy &
Maternity

Other Shropshire Council employees

Family Carers

Medium – family carers who rely on
day services for respite will still be
supported as eligible users will be
able to access under Community
Services.

Medium – employees – the majority
of the work force are female and
part-time. For re-provisioned
services TUPE will apply. There may
be some redundancies. There will
also be new employment
opportunities as personal assistants
for people who use direct payments
to meet their assessed needs.

Page 73



APPENDIX F

EINA decision

Decide whether to adopt the policy based on the aims, evidence collected, consultation results,
relative merits of alternative approaches and compliance with legislation. Ensuring that:

Summary of findings and analysis - EINA decision

Following consultation in 2011 and 2012 and further consultation to be undertaken with staff
groups collectively and Service Users on an individual basis the impact of this service change is
considered to be low.

Signature (Lead Officer) Signature (Head of Service)

Date: Date:

Next review date of this EINA

Every 3 years or when policy changes, if earlier

Date:

Action Plan guidance notes

Give an outline of your action plan, based on the evidence you find to support your decisions,
and the challenges & opportunities you have identified. It could include:

challenges and
priorities you have identified

discussion and involvement with stakeholders
monitoring and evaluating the policy for its impact on different groups throughout the policy

making process and as the policy is carried out

assessment, and that they are assessed to make sure they are having intended impact

service providers, Non-Departmental Public Bodies and regulatory bodies
colleagues are made aware of the assessment

implementing the policy

Also consider the following:

Page 74



APPENDIX F

Action Plan
Person
responsible

Target date

Involvement &
consultation

Second phase of consultation completed
in 2011 and 2012.

Staff consultation – ongoing from August
2013

Individual Service User consultation
ongoing from August 2013

Data collection &
evidence

Assessment &
analysis

Procurement &
partnerships

Monitoring, evaluating
& reviewing (including
publishing the results)

You may wish to change the above categories in the first column to reflect the actions needed, relevant to the

policy and assessment

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Call-In Day Service Reconfiguration
	5 Day Service Reconfiguration Report
	5A Appendix A
	5B Appendix B
	5C Appendix C
	5D Appendix D
	5E Appendix E
	5F Appendix F


